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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ARVIND GOODHILL SUIT MANUFACTURING LIMITED

Repoit on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Limited
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements including
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the financial statements”). '

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid finandcial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rutes,
2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereurider, and we have
fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Sharehoider’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO. (Regd.)

- In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
oF error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professianal
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
rocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
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SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO. (Regd.)

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accournting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabie user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated In our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order,2016 ("The Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies act,2013,we give
in the "Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the
extent applicabie.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained aill the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,
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b)

c)

d)

f)

a)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

0On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. :

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has ne pending litigations which has an impact on its financial position in its
financial statements.

il, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iti.  There has been no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417W

ool Jmim B0

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.100892

Ahmedabad
May 13, 2019
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITCR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controis over financial reporting of ARVIND
GOODHILL SUIT MANUFACTURING PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™ as of March
31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects. :

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
of the Company.

£
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principies, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controis system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controis over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Einancial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 110417W

M”f["‘”‘qf :

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner
Membership No.100892

Ahmedabad
May 13, 2019
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under *‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirem'ents'
section of our report to the Members of Arvind Goodhill Suit manufacturing Private Limited
of even date)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

{vi)

(wvii)

(viii)

(a) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b} As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the
year in accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. We are informed that no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) There are no immovable properties held in the name of the Company and thus requirement of
clause (i} (c) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book
records were not material having regard to the size of the Company, and the same have been property
dealt with in the books of account.

The Company has not granted secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liabitity
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Consequently, requirements of clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

The Company has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security or made any
investment covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Consequently, requirements of clause (iv) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been passed by the Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of
cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Company’s product.
Consequently, requirement of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

{a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of outstanding
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payabie.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts payable as on
March 31, 2019 on account of any dispute,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks.
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{(ix)  To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer. However, the
term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied by the Company for the purpose for
which they were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application.

(%) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been notlced or reported
during the year.

(xi)  To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year under review. Consequently,
requirerments of Clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Consequently, requirements of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable,

(xiii)  To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details have been disciosed in the Ind AS financial statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fulty or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Consequently, requirements of clause {xiv} of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(xv)  To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with

him.

(xvi) According to the nature of the business, the Company is not required to be registered under section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 110417W

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner
Membership No. 100892

Bangalore
May 13, 2019



Arvind Geodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Particalars- Notes As at As at
Murch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rupees Rupces
ASSETS
1. Non-curreat asscts
{a) Praperty, plant and cquipment 6 450023 829 483,365,120
{h) Capital work-in-progress 2012847 1,832,727
{c} intangible assets 7 410,529 1,544,450
(d) Financial assets
{i} Loans 7 - 57,182
(ii) Other financial assets 7 41,555,152 32,501,157
{e) Other ron-cutrent asscts ] 872,925 6,190
(D) Deferred tax asscts (net) 23 35,444,181 33,015.403
Total non-current asseis 539,839,463 552,327,229
TL.Current assets
{&) Inventorics 9 378138642 289.001,1142
{b} Financial asscts
(i} Trade receivables 7 112,854,490 134,475 977
(i} Cash and cash cquivalents 7 1,633,142 1,160,447
(it} Bank balance other than (i) above 7 6976905 14,833,024
{iv) Qthers financial assets 7 12,570.923 33387131
{c) Current fax assets (net) 10 2,329,651 218075
{d} Other current asscts 8 i28,5914.408 131,573,981
Total currend assels 643,418,153 574,601,947
Tolal Assets 1,183,257,616 1,126,929,176
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 10,708.000 9,700,800
Other equity 12 514,951,390 480,019,570
Toltal equily 525,651,396 489.719.570
LIABILITIES
1. Non-current liabilities
(a} Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 13 34.844.271 94,898,831
(b} Long-term provisions 14 12,108,796 4,645 810
{c) Government grants i5 31,039,399 29.889.874
Total non-current liabilities 77,992 466 134,434,515
II.Current liabilitics
(23 Finaacial liabilitics
{i) Borrowings i3 302,672,988 231 816,818
(3) Trade payables 13
Total putstanding ducs of mirero cnzerpriscs and smail
cnicrprises ) )
Total ﬂ_utsmnding dues of crgdilurs other than mirero 172,075,041 173,767 486
enterprises and small enterpriscs
{iii) Other financial liabilities 13 93,230,531 ¥8.929 686
{k} Other carrent lisbilitics 1L 7,550,102 3.733.000
{c) Short-ferm provisions 14 644,415 .346.566
(d} Government grants 15 2,390,678 2,150,881
Total carrent liabilities 579,613,754 502,775,091
Taotal equity and liabilities 1,183.257.610 1.126.929,176
Summary of significant accotnting polics: 3

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For Serab 8. Engincer & Co.
Chartered Accountants (

HCA] Firm'yRegistragfn No.{16417W
- -

CA, Chokshi Shreyas B,
Partier
Membership No.1 00892

Bangalore
May 13, 2619

Limited

Director

For and on hehail of the board of directors of
Arvind Goodhili Suic Manufagturing Private

T oo

Director

.Y




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Eimited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
Rupees Rupees
Income
Revenue from operations
Sale of Products 17 515,304,820 894,879,315
Sale of Services 17 49,610,155 28,227,473
Operating [ncome 17 22,736,588 69,072 627
Revenue from operations 587,651,503 992,729,415
Other income 18 9,219,531 35,478,093
Total income (1} 596,871,094 1,028,208, 108
Expenses
Cost of raw malerials and accessories consumad 19 288,860,370 504,797,212
Purchase of stock-in-trade - -
Changes in inventories of finished goods. work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 20 {74,937.875) {22,042.791)
Employce benchity expensc 21 248,775,226 282,701,358
Finance costs 22 27,407.064 20,428,772
Depreciation and amonisation expense 23 34,291,049 30,514,042
Other expenses 24 109,673,749 131,053,794
Thotal expenses (1T} 624,069,583 955,552,379
Profit/(L.oss) befor¢ exceptional items and tax (111)=(1-11}) (27,198,480 72,655,729
Exteptional items (TV) - -
Profit/(Loss) beforc tax (V) = (TI-TV} (27,198,489) 72,655,729
Tax éxpense
Current tax 25 - 13,191,776
Deferred tax charge/{credit) 25 (5,264.698) 12,634,051
Total fax expense (V1) £5,264,628) 25826427
Profit for the year (VII) = {V.VT) (21,933,791) 46,829,302
Other comprehensive income
A. Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains / (lpsses) on defined benefit plans 2,940,239 1,283,233
Income tax effect (764,462) {356,595}
an‘oﬂmr comprehensive income not fo be reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent 2175777 936,738
periods (A)
B. Other comprehensive income that may be reclassificd to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Net gains / (loss} on bedging instruments in a cash flow hedge 7,761.274 (3,896,559}
Income fax eifect (2.071.434 1.113.494
Net other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods (B) 5,689,840 (2,783,065)
Total other comprehensive ioeome for the period, net of tax (VII) = (A+B) 7,865,617 (1,850,827)
Total eomprehensive income for the period, net of fax (VII+VIII) (14,068,174) 44,972 475
Eaming per equity share [nominal value per share Rs.10~ {(March 31, 2018: Rs. 10~ }]
Basic and Diluted 29 (21.06} 4951
Summary of sigmificant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As por our reportof even date
For Sorab 8. Engineer & Co.

Chartered Accounlants

ICAT Firm'§ffegistrgiign No. 110417W -
; ‘ l\—-w—, -
C'A.-Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partnet
Memberskip No, 100892

Bangalore
May 13, 2019

£ T

Dircctor

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Arvind Goodhill Suit Maiﬁ

ng Private
/% —
‘ Director




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rupees Rupees

A Operating activitics

Profit/{Loss) Before taxution (27,198,489 72,655,729

Adjustments to reconcile profit before iax to net cash flows:

Depreciation fAmortization 31,291,549 30,514,042

interest Income (2,129,317) (1,512,076)

tnierest and Other Borrowing Cost 27,407 064 29.428,771

Loss on Sale of PPE 36,068 755,356

Bagd Debts Written Otf - 3,419,151

Allowanee for Doubiful Debis - 6,589,616

Govenunet grams 2.390,678) {2,180,881)

54,214,186 66,717,979

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 27,015,697 §39,373,708

Working Capital Changes:

Changes in Inventories (89,137,530 33,735,914)

Changes in irade payables (692,445) (27,249,478)

Changes in other current liabilities 1,816,442 (5,586,601

Changes in other financial abilities 938,190 1,166,263

Changes in pravissons 5,701,074 5012,815

Changes n loans and advances 57.182 (37.182)

Chunges in irade receivables 21,621,487 (10,308,072

Changes in ather assets 1,792,846 (64.,129.640)

Changes in other financial assets (13.404,621) 10,989,257

Changes in Other Bank Balances 7.856,719 3.030.324)

Net Changes in Working Capital (63,520,656} {136,998,874}

Cash Generated from Operations (36,504,959 2,374,834

Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund) 2.111.578) (11,698.016}

Net Cash from Operating Activities (38,616,535) (9,323,182)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of PPE (7,163,032} (20,068,330

Government grants recenved 3.750,000 -

Sale of PPE 616,007 285,983

Interest Income 2,129,317 1.812.076

Net cash flow from Investing Activities (667,708) (}7.970,273)
C  Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Issue of Share Capital 1 .000.000 1,300,000

‘Securities Premium received 49,000,000 63,700,000

Changes in fong term Borrowings {53.692,192) (64,214,741}

Changes in short term borrowings 70,856,170 55671877

interest and Other Borrowing Cost Paid {27.407,064) 129.428,771)

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 39,756,914 27,034,365

Net Increase/(Deereasc) in cash & cash equivalents 471,671 (259,090)

Cash & Cash-equivalent at the beginning of the period 1,160:447 1,419,537

Cash & Cash equivalent at the end of the period 1,633,142 1,168,447
Particulars Yeur ended Year ended

Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rupees Rupces

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: (Note 7)
Cash on Hand - 473
Bailances with Banks 1,633,142 1,155.974
Cash and cash equivalenis 1,633,142 1,160,447
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes -
Cash and cash equivalenis as restated 1,633,142 1,160,447

As per aur report of even date attached
For, Sorab 8. Engineer & Co.

Firm Registration No. 1 7W
Chartered Accountants

ol B b

CA, Chokshi Shrevas B,
Partner
Membership No. 100892

Bangalore
May 13, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private

Director
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Director



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

A. Equity share capital

As at April 1, 2017

Issuc of Equity Share capital 1,300,000
As at March 31, 2018 9,700,000
Issue of Equity Share capital 1,300,000
As at March 31, 2019 11,006,000

B. Other equity

Attributable to the cquity holders of the Company

Balance as at April 1,.2017 401,800,000 (31,114,092) 661,185 371,347,093
Profit for the year - 46,829,304 - 46,829,304
Addition during the year 63,700,000 - - 63,700,600
Other comprehensive income for the year - 926,238 {2,783,065) (1,836,827
Total Comprehensive income for the year 3,700,000 47,755,542 {2,783,065) 108,672,477
Balance as at March 31, 2018 465,500,000 16,641,450 {2,121,880) 480,019,570
Balance as at April 1, 2018 465,500,000 16,641,450 (2,121,880 480,019,570
Lioss for the year - (21,933,791 - (21,933,791)
Addition during the year 49,000,000 - 49,000,000
Other comprehensive income for the year 2,175,777 5.68%,840 7,865,617
Total Comprehensive income for the vear 49,000,000 (19,758,014) 5,689,840 34,931,826
Balance as at March 31, 2019 514,500,000 (3,116,564) 3,567,960 514,951,396

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Serab S. Engineer & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Ecgistr ion No.i 10417WI£
» f‘ ~—1 — *
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner
Membership No. 100892

Bangalore
May 13, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arvind Goodhill Suit Manuflacturing Private
A

Director

<%
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Director




NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1.

Corporate Information

Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited is a Joint Venture between Arvind Limited, Goodhill
Corporation, Japan and F-One Limited, Japan. The Company has set up a project of manufacturing Suits..

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
May 13, 2019,

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

2.1 Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as
issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followings:

o Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments);

o  Share based payments;
o Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;
e Value in Use

2.3 Rounding of amounts

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest rupee as per the
requirement of Schedule 111, except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial
statements consistently to all the periods presented.

3.1. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current
classification,

An asset is current when it is:
e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading;



3.2.

3.3.

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
o Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
o There is rio unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable,
it is assumed to be twelve months.

Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated
by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors
(including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing
circumstances. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the

results are known / materialised. .
The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred

after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement of such transaction and on
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate

are recognised in profit or loss.



3.4.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or

loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and Investments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurément date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability

Or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level | ~ Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
° Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation




3.5.

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such as asset held for

sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties. Involvement of external
valuers is decided upon annually by the management after discussion with and approval by the Company’s
Audit Committee. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external
valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is

reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes. ‘
¢ Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
¢ Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
° Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date of transition
* Investment properties
¢ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of
an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision

are met.



3.6

3.7

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are

ready to be put to use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their intended
use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the. Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets less residual
values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as prescribed under Part C of
Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 except for Plant and Machinery other than Lab equipment and

Leasehold Improvements.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are accounted for as
separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or over the remaining useful
life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation on Plant and Machinery is provided on straight line basis over the useful lives of the assets as
estimated by management based on internal assessment. The management ¢stimates the useful lives for

Plant & Machinery to be 20 years.

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an

adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment



3.8.

losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which

expenditure is incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period o
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-genérating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit

and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
Software is amortized over management estimate of its useful life of 5 years or License Period whichever

is lower and Patent/Knowhow is amortized over management estimate of its useful life of 5 years.

Inventories

Inventories of Raw material, Work-in-progress, Finished goods and Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. However, Raw material and other items held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are

expected to be sold at or above cost.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

e Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

¢ Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

e Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.
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All other inventories of stores, consumables, project material at site are valued at cost. The stock of waste
is valued at net realisable value. Excise duty wherever applicable is provided on finished goods lying within
the factory and bonded warehouse at the end of the year:

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired,
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the
Company. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present valuc using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or
other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years, For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for a property
previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the
impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company ¢stimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.



3.10. Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured goods, traded goods and related
services.

Effective 01 April 2018, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS 115) -
"Revenue from contracts with customers’ using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to
contracts that were not completed as on the transition date i.e. 01 April 2018. Accordingly, the comparative
amounts of revenue and the corresponding contract assets / liabilities have not been retrospectively

adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind-AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised
products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to

receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, it
does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following

criteria is met:
1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s

performance as the Group performs; or
2. The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created

or enhanced; or
3. The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity

has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the

point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products and services are recognised at a time on which the performance obligation
is satisfied except Revenue from real estate property development where in revenue is recognised over the
time from the financial year in which the agreement to sell or application forms (containing salient terms
of agreement to sell) is executed. The period over which revenue is recognised is based on entity’s right to
payment for performance completed. In determining whether an entity has right to payment, the entity shall
consider whether it would have an enforceable right to demand or retain payment for performance
completed to date if the contract were to be terminated before completion for reasons other than entity’s

failure to perform as per the terms of the contract.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company,
the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless
of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude
and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Interest income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as

fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial



asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other

income in the statement of profit or loss.

Profit or loss on sale of Investments
Profit or Loss on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company, and is determined

as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment and other incidental expenses.

Insurance claims

Claims receivab
of their ultimate

le on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is reasonably certain
collection.

3.11. Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instr

ument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability

or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are recognised initially at
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

¢ Fina

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

ncial assets at amortised cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:

This
asset

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount

outstanding.

category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
s are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)

method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included



in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and seiling financial assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial asset is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCY, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value
through profit or loss. However, such election is-allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

or

The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially alf of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred



asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated Hability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in
the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification classification
Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair wvalue is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amottised Cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new
gross carrying amount.

Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

FVOCI | Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always
been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
' carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative

gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
to P&L at the reclassification date.




{v) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exposure:

* Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

o Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

e Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

¢ Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

e Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
o Trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 18, if they do not
contain a significant financing component and
e Trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 18 that contain a
significant financing component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore
separation of time value of money.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,

right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the

reporting date,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the
Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument



o  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected in a separate line under
the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:
¢ Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease receivables: ECL
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the meaSurement of those assets in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount,
e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.
e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCIL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely

basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets,
i.., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

b) Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial labilitics at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial
liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

-}

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered



into by the Company ‘that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risks are recognized in OCL These gains / losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes
in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has
not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

* Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. .
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iif) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when,
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged

or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

¢) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to.seitle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilitics simultaneously.

3.12. Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with a maturity of three months or Iess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.



For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the

Company’s cash management.

3.13. Government Grants and Export incentives

(Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant.will be received and
all attached conditions will be comptied with. When the grant relates to an expenise item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair
value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the
benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided
by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the
effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially
recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the
initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

Export Incentive
Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports

based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

3.14. Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid

to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax is recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
@ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in

a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;



e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

¢ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent that there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the
period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes
tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The
Company reviews such tax credit asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the
Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
Deferred tax includes MAT tax credit.



3.15. Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards,
exgratia, performance pay etc. and the same are recognised in the period in which the employee renders

the related service.
b) Post-Employment Benefits

() Defined contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, superannuation fund scheme, employees’ state
insurance fund scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined contribution plans. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution paid/payable under such schemes. The
contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

(ii} Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retitement medical benefit schemes are

Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit
plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at
the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from
the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit Hability or asset.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the Statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
o  Net interest expense or income



¢) Other long term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present

value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is
reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

3.16. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares

into ordinary shares.
3.17. Provisions

General
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of

a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of a manufacturing facility for the production
of its goods. Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the
obligation, to the extent ascertainable, using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of
the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to
the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is cxpensed as incurred and recognised in the
staternent of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed
annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied

are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or

liabilities affected in future periods.



4.1. Estimates and assumption
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when

they occur.

Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the

obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies
of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond
with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for
quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the
discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future

inflation rates for the country.
Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 27.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 31 for further disclosures.

Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing
of the receivable balance and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is
grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables
are written off when management deems them not to be collectible.

Taxes
Defetred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit

will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to



determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 25.

Intangible assets
Refer Note 3.7 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets. The carrying value of Intanglble assets has

been disclosed in Note 6.

Property, plant and equipment
Refer Note 3.5 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of

Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ecxceeds its recoverable

amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar-assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows

and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7 - Financial assets

7 {a) Trade receivables

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As-at Mareh 31, 2018
Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good 11,28,54,490 13,44,75977
Credit Impaired 1,28,81,798 1,28,81,798
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (1,28,81,798) (1,28,81,798)
Total Trade and other receivables 11,28,54,490 13,44,75,977

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 0 90 days.
Trade Receivables are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note-13{a}

Allawance for doubtful dehis
Company has provided allowance for doubtful debts based on the lifetime expected credit loss model using provision matrix.

Movement in allowance for doubtful debt

Particalars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Rupees Rupees
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,28,81,798 62,92,182
Add : Allowance for the year (Note 24} - 65,89.616
Less : Write off of bad debts {net of recovery) - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,28,81,798 1,28,81,798
7 {b} Loans
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Rupees Rupees:
Unsecured considered good
Neon-carrent
Loans to employees 57,182
Total Loans - 57,182
7 {c) Cash and cash eqaivalent
. As at' March 31, 2019 As at March 31,2018
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Balance with Bank
Current accounts and debit bafance in cash credit accounts 16,33,142 11,59,974
Cash on hand - 473
Total cash and cash equivalents 16,33,142 11,60,447
7 (d} Other bank balance
. As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 69,76,905 1,48,33,624
Total ather bank balances 69,76,905 1,48,33,624
7 (€) Other financial assets
" As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars i :
Rupees Rupees
Unsecured, considered good
Nen-current
Security deposits
To Others 2,13,83,110 2,10,80,000
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 2,01,72,042 1,14,21,157
4,15,55,152 3,25,01,157
Cuarrent
Income receivable 77,49,355 33,38,731
Receivable in respect of Derivative contract 48,21 568 -
1,25,70,923 33,38,731
Total financial assets 5,41,26,075 3,58,39,888

Foreign exchange forward contracts (Cash flow hedge)

Foreign exchange forward contracts; designated as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable future purchases / sales in
foreign currency are-at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVOCI) and change in the fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income.



7 (f) Financial assets by category

Particulars FVTPL FYOCI Amortised cost
March 31, 2019

Trade receivables - 11,28,54,490
Cash & bank bafance - 86,10,047
Other financial assets 48,21 568 4,93,04,507
Total Financial assets 48,21,568 17,07,69,044
Particulars FYTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
March 31, 2018

Trade recéivables - - 13,44,75,977
Loans - - 57,182
Cash & bank balance - - 1,48.33,624
Other financial assets - - 3,58,39,888
Total Financial assets - B 18,52,06,671

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 33.
Fair value disclosures for financial dssets and liabilities are in Note 31 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 32.

Note 8 : Other current / non-current assets

As'at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Partical
artiedians Rupees Ropees
Unsecured, considered gaod
Non-current
Capital advances 872,925 6,190
8,72,925 6,190
Current
Advance to suppliers
To Others 5,21,94,617 4,31,19,589
Sales tax/VAT/ Cenvat Receivable, GST, etc. 2,62,54,738 2,52,36,240
Export incentive receivable 4,62,65,063 5,79,80,872
Prepaid expenses 15,55,507 15,80,641
Other Current Asset 26,44 475 36,56,639
12,89,14,400 13,15,73,981
Total 12,97,87,325 13,15,80,171
Other current assets are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note-13(a)
Note % : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value).
. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particalars
Rupees Rupees
Raw materials 3,05,24,946 2,96,79,751
Accessories $1,33,58,502 10,03,10,176
Fuel 16,96,067 12,56,536
Work-in-progress £,90,57,144 1,82,00,383
Finished goods 20,95 98,016 13,55,16,902
Stores and spares 39,03,967 40,37,364
Total 37,81,38,642 28,90,01,112
Inventories are hypothecated as security for barrowings as disclosed under Note 13(a)
Note 10 : Current Tax Assets (Nef)
. As at March 31,2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Tax Paid in Advance (Net of Provision) 23,29,651 2,18,075
Total 23,29,651 2,18,075




Arvind Goudhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes tg the Financial Statements

Note 11 : Equity share capital

Authorised share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,00,00,000 10,00,0C,000 1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Issned and subscribed share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 10,70,000 1,07,00,000 9,70,000 97,600,000
Subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs.10 each 10,70,000 1,07,00,000 9,706,000 97.,00,000
Total 10,70,000 1,07,60,000 9,70,000 97,60,000

11.1. Reconcitiation of sharés outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

a Rup

At the beginning of the period 9,70,000 97,00,000 8,40,000 84,00,000
Add ; :

Shares issued during the year 1,00,000 10,00,000 1,360,000 13,00,000
Qutstanding at the end of the period 10,70,000 1,07,00,000 9,70,000 97.,00,000

11.2. Terms/Righis attached to the equity shares

The Company has one class of sharcs referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held,
Thie dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of
liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion
to their shareholding.

11.3. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the
company

Arvind Limited- Holding Company 545,700 51.00 4,94,700 51.00
Goodhill Corporation (Japan)- Asscoiate Company 3,10,300 29.00 2,81,300 29.00
F-One Limited (Japan)- Asseciate Company 2,14,000 20.00 1,94,000 20.00

11.4 Objective, policy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 34



Arvind Goodhil) Sust Manuteriuring Private Limited
Notes s the Finsncial Statements

Note 132 Other Equity

Balaice’

Note 1.1 Reserves & Surplus

Secavitios premim seconnt

$alancg ws per last Brupeal statements 46,53,60. 30 40, 18,60.000
Received during the year 400000, (04 537,040,004
Balunte ot the end of the year $1,45,00,000 46,55,00,000

Surphus in statement of profit and loss
aianes as per Tast Francial statements LE6,AT 450

[ERIRE T -X))
Profiti{Loss) for the vear {2.19,32,701 1E8.70,304
571 for the year 21,715,777 £.26,23%
Balance at the end o the year (31,16,544) 1,665,418 4380
Totaf reserves & surpius 51,13,83,436 4821 41 4560
s S
Note 12.3 Gther tnmprehensive incame
Hedge reserve
Balance as por Iast financial statements (21,21,8%0) 6,61,185
Adddd: gain ¢ (fous) for the yesr TES1 2T (AR08, 5593
Less: Tax impirt Q671 9345 iLi3454
Balmce ot the end of the your 3567960 (21.21,880)
Fotaf Oiher comprehensive income 35‘67,960 (1,21 880y

Totaf Dther equity 51A9,51g96 48,00,19 570
Bt L1 =t

The description of the nature and purpase B ach reserve within equity ss 53 Tollows:

. Scearities premium reserve

Securitits premmiurs resenve is created dus to premiurn on tssu of shares. This reserve is whitized in accordance with the
provisians of the Companies Act,

b, Cosh Flow Hedge Reserve
The hedizs resorve Fepresents she culimarive effeor porticn of gains or fnsses artsing an changes in fair viue of designated
postion of hedging instruments entered jat forcash fluw hedres. The Sunlative gain or logs Ansing on the thanges of the fie
value of'the desginated portion of the hedging Tnstiuments that arg recognised and accumudated under the cash How hedge

reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only whent be hedped tansaction affests the profit or loss, or included e 4 basis
ardfuitnrant fo the non-Snancizl bedged flom,

Note 13 : Finanefal liabitities

13 (o) Long-derat Borrowings

Leng-term Borrowings {refer note () %0 {) helow)
Non-current pertion
Secured

Term Yoan from Danks 34844, 48 O @31
3,48,44,2°) D.4898 §31

Carrent maturitées

Secured
Tern loan from Banks 73347042 6.69.84 674
73347342 6,6984.874
Totzl fong-terns b:lrram'ngs 081.91,513 16,18,83,703
hort-term B.an'o\'\‘lngs (refer note (d) & [;-) balow)
Seeured
Waorking Capital Loans repavable on demang 4.36.06,73% 3,723,632
frot Banksy
Unsecured
Under buyer's Crediy Amangemnent 2,12,24,560 292 44 636
Infereerparate Deposits
From Related Parties 4,78.41,690 08878
Fxpon, Packing ety 150000000 I7.63.060,000
(al shori-term borrawi [F8] 30,2¢,72 058 23,18,16,818
il o e
ta} bar'mwinss 41,08,64,501 39.37,00,523
ture of security:

m lan ol Rs. 10.81,91,513/-

m Loaos from Banks of Rs, HLSS.00,4655 are secured by First charga over the ensire fixed assety end second
e over enture stok, receiveablis and other current assets of the womnpinly both present and future,

 Purehase loans from Banks of R&. 26,93, 048/ are securad aginst bypothication of refated Vehicles.

’//{(C’



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Rate of Interest and Terms of Repayment

From Banks
Canara Bank 5,64,00,000
Base Rate
+1.05% | Repayahle in 20 quarterly instalments statting from
quarter ending June 3G, 2015
State Bank Of India 3,78,75,269] I Year
MCIR +
3.30% | Repayable in 20 quarterly instalments starting from
‘quartet ending June 30, 2015
HDFC Bank 1,2£,79,400[ 1 Year
- MCLR +
0.55% | Repayable in 22 quarterly instalments starting from
quarter ending Dacember 31, 2019
Hire Purchase Loans 26,91,048| 9.75% | Repayable in 60 equated instaliments.
Nature of Secarity

Woerking Capital Facilities from Banks

Eoans from banks are secured by: )
i. First charge over entire stoks; receivables and other cusrent assets and second charge over entire fixed assets of the Cempany both present and future.

Rate of Inferest
Foans from banks carry interest rates of 1.05% abave base rate.
Inter Comporate Deposit carries interest rate of' 10.25% per annum.

13 (b) Trade payable

Current

Other trade payable {Refer note below} 17,30,75,041 17,37,67,486
17,30,75,041 12.37,67,486
Total 17,30,75,041 17,37,67,486

& The Company has not received any intmation from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 and hence
disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterpose Development {(MSMED) Act, 2006 regarding:

{a) Principal emount and the interest due thereon ining unpaid to any suppliers as at the end of accounting year,
{b} Interest paid during the year;
(%) Amcunt of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during ing year;

(d) Tnterest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment;
(e} Tnterest accrued and unpaid at the end of the accownting year; and
() Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, wntil such date when the interest dues above are aetually paid 10 the small enterprise. have not been given.

The Company is making efforts te get the confirmations from the suppliers s regard to their status under the said Act.

13 (c) Other fizancial Habikities

‘As at March 31, 20]

Currear
Current maturity of Jong term borrowings 7,33,47,242 6,69,84,874
Interest acorued but net due 2,441,804 1,20,298
Payable to employees 1,96,9¢,485 1,88,84.302
Mark 5o Market of Deivative Financial Insirumients - 29,39,706
Total 9,32,80,531 5.89,29,680




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

13 (d) Financisi es by category Rupees
Particutars i i R S FYTPL o it o -Amortised cost i
March 31, 2018

Borrowings . - . 33,75,17.259
Trade payabls - - 17,30,75,04)1
Current maturity of long term borrowings - - 7.33,47,242
Interest zccrued but not due - - 2,41,804
Payable to ¢ployees - - 1,96,91 485
Total Financial liabilities n - 60,38,72,834

March 31, 20017

32,67,15,649

Borrowings - -
Trade payable - - 17,37,67,486
Current maturity of long ter borrowings - - 6,69,84,874
Interest accrued but not due - - 1,20,29%
Payable lo employees - - 1,88.84,802
Financial Instruments - 29,392,706 -

Tatal Financial liabilities - 29,39,706 58.64,73,169

“For Financial instraments risk management chjectives and polictes, refer Note 33.

Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note'3? and air value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 32.

Note 14 : Provisions

Long-term
Provision for employee benefits {refer Note 27)
Provision for leave encashment 42,85,290 3345550
Provision for gratuity 78,23,506 63,00,260
1,21,08,79¢6 9645310
Short-term
Provisien for employee benefits (refer Note 27)
Provision for leave ancashment 3,80,358 2,54,119
Prevision for gratuity 2,54,057 02,447
644,415 3,46,566
Total 1,27,53,211 99,92&76

WNote 15 : Government grant

Non-current
.Deferred income 3,10,39,399 2,58,89,874
3,10,39,399 2,95,80,874
Current
Deferred income 23,9067 21,80,881
23,90,678 21,80,881
Total 3.34.30,077 3,20,70,755

Government grants have been reccived for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled

conditicns or contingenctes attached to these grants as ai March 31,

Government prant

ALE|
3,20,70,755

As at April 1 3,42,51,636
Received during the year 37,50,000 .

Released to statement of profit and loss {23,50,678) (21,80,881)
Balance . 3.34,30,077 3,20,70,758

Note 16 : Olher carrent

Current
Advance from customers 8,20,518 2,81,298
Statutery dues including provident fund and 1ax deducted at 58,13,639 46,027,639
source
Other Liabilities 9,15 945 8,49,723
Total 75,5042 57,33,660
3



-Arvind Goodhill Sait Manufzcturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financia! Statements

Note 123 Other Equity

=i March 31,201 Asat March 35,2018

upees:
Note 12.1 Reserves & Surplus
Securities premium aceonnt
Bal as per ast fi ial 46,55,00,000 40,18,00,000
Received duting the year 4,90,00,000 6,37,00,000
Balance at the end of the year 51,45,00,000 46,55,00,000

Suarplos in statement of profit and loss

Balance as per fast financial statements 1,66,41,450 (3,11,14,092)
Profit/{(Loss) for the year {2,19.33,791) 4,68,29,304
OCI for the year 21,715,777 9,26,238
Balance at the end of the year {31,16,564) 1,66,41,450
Total reserves & surplas 51,13,83,436 48,21,41,450
Nete 12.2 Other comprehensive income
Hedge reserve
Balance as per last financial statements (21,21,880) 661,185
Add: gain / (i0ss) for the year 77,61,274 (38,96,559)
Eess: Tax impact (20,71,434) 1%,13,494
Balance at the end of the year 35,67,960 (21,21,880)
Total Other comprehensive income 35,67,560 {(21,21,380)
Total Other equity 51.49,51,396 48,00,19,570

Details of reserves

Note 13 : Financial liabilities

13 (a) Long-term Barrowings

s at March 31,2018

Laong-term Borrowings (refer note (a) to (c) below)
Non-carrent portion

Secured
Term loans from Banks 3,48,44,271 948,98 831
3,48,44,271 9,48,98,831
Current maturities
Secured
Term loan from Banks 7,33,47,242 6,65,84,874
7,347,242 6,69,84,374
Total long-term horrowings i9,81,91,513 16,18,83,705
Short-term Borrowings (refer note {d) & {¢) below)
Secured
Working Capital Loans repayable on demand 4,36,06,738 3,23,63,304
from Banks
Unsecured
TUnder buyer's Credit Arrangement 2,12.24,560 2,92.44.636
Intercorporate Deposits )
From Related Pasties 4,78,41,690 2,083,878
Export Packing Credit 19.00.06,000 17,00,00,000
Total shori-term borrewings 30,26,72,988 23,18,16,818
Total borrowings 41,08,64,501 39.37,00,523

Nature of security;
‘Term loan of Rs. 10,81,91,513/-

®  Term Loans from Benks of Rs, 10,55,00,465/ are secured by First charge over the entire fixed assets and second
charge over entire stock, receiveables and other current assets of the company both present and Fature.

b Hire Purchase loans from Banks of Rs. 26,91,048/- are secured against hypothication of related Vebrcles.



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Rate of Interest and Terms of Repayment

Amiount Rupees
From Banks
Canara Bank 5,64.00,000
Ease Rate
+1.05%, | Repayable in 20 o iy instal starting from
quarter ending June 3¢, 2015
State Bank Of India 3,78,75,269] 1 Year
MCLR +
3.30% | Repayable in 2€ quarterly sestalments starting from
‘quarter ending June 30, 2015
HDFC Bank ’ 1.2179,400] 1 Year
MCLR +
0.55% | Repayable in 22 quarierly instalments starting from
quarter ending December 31, 2019
Hire Purchase Leans 2691,048; 9.75% | Repayable in 60 equated installments.

Nsture of Security
Werking Capifal Facilities from Banke

Loans from bariks are secured by: )
i. First charge over entire stocks, teceivables and other current assats and second charge over entire fixed assets of the Company both present and future,

Rate of Interest
Loans from banks carry interest rates of 1.05% above base rate.
Inter Comperaté Deposit carries interest rate of $0.25% per annum.

13 (b} Trade payahle

upees’

Current

Other trade payable (Refer nate heiow) 17,30,75,04] . 17,37,67,486
17,30,75,041 £7,37,67,486
Tatal 17,30,75,041 17,37,67,486

The: Company has not received any intimation from suppliers regerding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 and hence
disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 regarding:

(#) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any suppliers as at the end of accounting year;

{b) Interest paid during the year;

(¢} Amount of payment made to the supplier beyord the appuinted day during accounting vear;

() Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment;

(¢) Interest accrued and unpaid at the end of the aceounting year; and

{f) Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise. have not been given.

The Company is making efforts to get the confirmations from the suppliers as regard to their status under the said Act,

13 {c} Otker financial lizbilities

npees

Current
Current maturity of long term borrowings 7,33,47,242 6,60,84,874
Intergst acerued but not due 241,804 1,20,298
Payablz to emplayees 1,96.91 485 1,88,84,802
Matk 10 Market of Derivative Financial Instruments - 29,39, 706

Total 9.32,80,531 B,59.29.680




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

13 {d) Financial liabiliti Rupees
Particulsrs: SFVOCT - Amortised cast i
March 31,2018

Borrowings - - 33,75,17,259
Trade payable - - 17,36,75,041
Cument matutity ¢f long tetm borrawings - - 7,33,47.242
Interest accrued but not due - - 241,804
Payable {0 employees - . 1,96.91.485
Total Financial liabilities- - - 60,38,72,831
March 31,2017

Borrowings - - 32,67,15,649
Trade payable - - 17,37,67,486
Current matunity of long term bomowings - - 6.69,84,874
Interest accrued but not dus . - 1,20,298
Payable to employees - - 1,33,84,802
Financiat Instruments - 29,39,706 -
Tatal Financial Liabilifies - 29,39,7606 58,64,73,109

Fer Financial instruments nsk management objectives and policies, refer Note 33.

Fair value disclosures for financial assets and Habilities are in Note 31 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 32.

Noie 14 : Provisions

Longsterm
Provision for employee benefits (refer Note 27) .
Provision for [eave encashment 42,85,290 33,45,550
Provision for gratuity 78.23.506 £3,00,260
1,21,08,796 96,45,510
Short-term
Provision for empleyee benefits (refer Note 27)
Provision for leave encashment 3,90,358 254,119
Provigion for gratuity 2,584,057 92,447
644,415 346,566
Total 1,27,53%1 1 99,91&76

Note 15 : Government grant

Non-curreat
Deferred income 3,10,39.319¢ 2,98,89,874
3,10,39,399 2,98,89,874
Current
Deferred income 23,90 678 21,380,881
23,90,678 21,480,381
Total 3.34.30077 3,20,70,75%

Government grants have been recgived for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. Thers are no nafulfilled

conditiens or contingencies attached to these grants as ai March 3],

Government grant

. 3 Repres: Rupees
As at April 1 3,20,70,755 34251636
Received during the year 37,350,000 -
Released to statement of profit and loss {23,90,678) (21,80,881)
Balance 3,34,30.077 3,20,70,755

Note 16 : Other eurrent

Current
Advance from customers 8,20518 2,81,298
Statwory dues including provident fund and tax deducted af 58,13,639 46,02,639
source
Other lighilites 9,15,945 8,49,723
Total 75,50,102 57,33,660




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 17 : Revenue from operations (Refer note (i) befow)

51,33,04,820

89,48,79,315

Sale of products.
Sale of services 4,96,10,155 2,82,27473
Operating income
Waste sale 16,14,135 3,79.966
Export incentives 2,59,80,628 6,64.44,643
Exchange Difference (Net) (48,58,175) 27,98,018
2,27.36,588 6,96,22,627
Total 58,76,51,563 99,27,29.415
Note :

(i) Post implementation of Goods and Service Tax (GST) with effect from July 1,2017, Reveniue from operations is disclosed net off
GST. Revenue from operations for the year till June 30, 2017 includes excise duty amounting to Rs. 6,19,065 , which is now
subsumed in the GST. Accordingly, Revenue from cperations for the current year are not comparable with previous year.

Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue based on Geography
£ itea
31;201 ; il
Domestic 18,07,18,689 20,23,25,093
Export 40,6%.32,874 79,04,04,323
Revenue from Qperations 58,76,51,563 99,27.29,416

Revenue based on business segment

March 31;.201

(Garments

i
38,76,51,563

Revenue from Operations

58,76,51,563

99,27,29,416

Reconciliation of revenue from operation with contract price

Gl e 312019 31
Revenue from contract with customers as per the contract price 58,89,17,812 99,39,89,577
Adjustment madé to contract price on account of;
a) Discounts and Rebates 1,342,207 3,04,784
b) Sales Return 1£,24,042 3,36,312
c} Excise Duty on sale of goods - 6,19,065
Revenue fram Operations 58,76,51,563 99,27,29,416

Note 18 : Other income

Interest income 21,29.317 18,12,076
Government grants 23,90,678 2,59,58.310
Exchange Difference (Net) on Buyer's Credit 592,879 27,57,302
Miscellaneous income 41,06,657 49,51,005
Total 92,19.531 3,54,78,693

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled

conditions or contingencies attached to these grants as at March 31, 2019,

[n



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 19 : Cost of raw materials and components consiimed

pee IEpees

Stock at the beginging of the year 12,99,89,927 12,07,62,863
Add : Purchases 30,27,53,891 51,40,24,276
43,27,43 818 63,47,87,139

Less : Inventory at the end of the year £4,38,83 448 12,99,80 927
Raw materials and components consumed 28.88,60,370 50,47,97.212
Total 28,88,60,370 50,47,97,212

Note 20 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Stock at the end of the year

Finished goods 20,95,98,016 13,55,16,902
Work-in-Progress 1,90,57,144 1,82,00,383
22,86,55,160 15,37,17,285
Stoclcat the beginning of the year
Finished goods 13,55,16,902 10,58,35,956
Work-in-Progress 1,82,00,383 24938538
15,37,17,285 13,07,74,494
{Increase) / Decrease in stocks (7,49,37,875) (2,29,42,791)
Total {7,49,37,875) (2,29,42,791)

Note 21 : Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commission, etc. (Refer Note 27) 22,51,40,315 25,60,34,689
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,39,26,912 2,35,81,418
Welfare and training expenses 27,07.999 30,85,243
Total 24,17,75,226 28,27,01,350

Noie 22 : Finance costs

upees upees
Interest expense - Loans 1,96,65,663 1,26,83,986
Interest expense - Working capital loans 41,24,674 1,50,42,156
Interest expense - others 15,00,429 5,83,730
Other finance cost 21,16,296 11,18,%00
Total 2,74,07,064 2,94,28,772

‘Note 23 : Depreciatior: and amortization expense

Depreciation on PPE (Refer Nate 5) 3,06,52,128 2,99,02,304
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 6,38,921 6,11,738
Total 3,12,91,049 3,05,14,042

‘i
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Arvind Goodhill Snit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 24 : Other expenses

Power and fuel 2,12,72.602 2,32.17,102
Stores consumed 94,82 758 F243,042
Insurance 11,11,798 9,19.248
Processing carges 71,23,522 8596310
Printing, stationery & communicatiosn 8,63,063 22,98,364
Rent (Refer Note 30) 2,88.07.817 2,55 89,605
Repairs :

To Building -

To Machineries {including spases consumplion) 70,10,296 58,67,637

To others 1,02.763 1.28,167
Freight, insurince & clearing charge 1,11,58,633 2,55,25.456
Legal & Professional charges 39,09,283 34,71,244
Convevance & Travelling expense 17.34,988 15,012,735
Advertisement and publicity - 22,000
Secutly Expenses 34,55,920 36,8%,290
Fousekeeping Expenses 39,93,006 36,36,345
Miscellaneous Labour charges 143,600 1,22,600
Alowance for doubtfis] debts B 65,89.616
Loss on Sale of PPE 36,068 7,359,356
Bad debt written off - 34.19.151
Bagk charges 14.67,934 3343227
Auwditor's remuneration 9,244,500 9.71,624
Miscellaneous expenses 30,75,198 51,3883
Total : 10,96,73,749 13.10,33,794

Payment to Avditors (Net of tax)

Payment fo Auditors as

Aauditors 425000 4,25.000
For lax audit 100,000 1,00,000
For faxation matters 33,750 33,750
For Other certification work 280,670 357,270
For reimbursement of expenses 83,680 35,604
Total 9.24,500 9,71,624

o’



Arvind Goodhil Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 25.: Income tax
The major component of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31,

2018 are :

Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax
Current tax

Deferred tax
Deferred tax chargef(credit)

(52,64,698)

1,31,91,776

1,.26,34,651

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

(52,64,698)

2,58,26,427

OCIsection

Statement to Other comprehensive income (OCI)

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

Net loss/gain) on actuarial gains and losses 7,64,462 3,56,995
Net gains / (loss) on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge 20,71,434 (11,13,494)
Deferred tax charged to QCI 28,35,896 (7,56,499)

Reconcitiation of tax expease and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic fax rate for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

A) Current tax

Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations {2.71,98,489) 7,26,55,729
Tax @ 26% (March 31, 2018; 26%) (70,71,607) 1,88,90,490
Adjustment

Others 18,06,926 69,35,937
At the effective income tax rate of Nil (March 31, 2018 : 35.55%) (52,64,681) 2,58,26.427

B) Deferred tax

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (6,60,49,825) (6,77,64,680) (17,14,855) (42,27,434)
Expenditure allowable on payment basis 34,91,346 24,22 887 (10,68,459) (8,84,199)
Allowance for doubtful debt 33,49,267 35.83,716 2,34,449 (16,35,432)
Others 8,14,61617 8,15,81,703 1,20,086 3,18,20,993
Unsued tax credit available 1,31,91,776 1,31,91,776 u {1,31,91,776)
Deferred tax expense/(income) (24,28,779 1,18,78,152
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3,54,44,181 3,30,15,402
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows
Deferred tax assets 10,14,94,006 10,07,80,082
Deferred tax Habilities (6,60,49,825) (6,77,64,680)
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets net 3,54,44,181 3,30,15,402

March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilitics), net Rupees Rupees
Opening balance as of Aprif 1 3,30,15,403 4,48,93,555
Tax income/{expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 52,64,698 (1,26,34,651)
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI. (28,35,896) 7,56,499
Closing balance as at March 31 3,54,44,205 3,30,15,403

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate 10 income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

-



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 26 : Foreign Exchange Derivatives and Exposures not hedged

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward and option contracis to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange
rates on foreign currency exposures. The counter party for these contracts is generally a bank.

Al derivative financial instruments are recognized as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and measured at fair value. The accounting for changes in
the fair value of a derivative instrument depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation.

The fair values of all derivatives are separately recorded in the balance sheet within current and non-current assets and liabilities depending upon the
maturity of the derivatives.

The use of derivative instruments is subject to limits, authorities and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of management. The limits, authorities and

monitoring systems are periodically reviewed by management and the Board. The market risk on derivatives is mitigated by changes in the valuation of
the underlying assets, liabilities or transactions, as derivatives are used only for risk management purposes.

A. Foreign Exchange Derivatives

As at March 31, 2019
Average Exchange Rate| Amount in Foreign | Nominal Amount In MTM Value

(InRs.) currency {(Amount in Rs.) {Amount in Rs.)
Nature of instrument Currency
Forward contracts
Sales
Maturing less than 3 months USsD 71.90 14,30,005 10,28,20,009 30,68.000
Maturing between 3 to 6 months UsD - - - -
Total UsD 14,30,005 10,28,20,009 30,68,000
Sales
Maturing less than 3 months GBP 95.33 4,50,000 4,28,98,305 16,832,000
Total GBP 4,50,000 4,28,98,305 16,82,000

All derivative contracts stated above are for the purpose of hedging the underlying foreign CUITENCY exposure.

B. Exposure Not Hedged

‘Rupee
Receivables USD 3,91,696 2,77,64,952 1,384,191 1,20,34,885
GBP 6,78,051 5,67,90,218 3,95,433 3,32,23,182
Payable towards borrowings usD 407,408 2,12,24,560 4,48,709.00 2,92.44,609
Payable to creditors UsD 342,362 2,28,04,385 4.57,535 3,04,23,063
GBP 1,29,182 1,27,02,620 1,52,543 1,48,58,642
EUR 124 10,137 25,642.34 20,96,261

JPY 66,955 34,823 66,955 34,823
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Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 28 : Related Party Disclosure

As per the [ndian Accounting Standard on "Retated Party Disclosures” (IND AS 24), the related parties of the Company are as follows -

2 Name of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship :

Arvind Limited

Arvind Internet Limited
Arvind Fashion Limited
Arvind Fashion Limited

oy N —

n

Arvind Envisol
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
7 JArvind Lifestyle Brands Limited

-~

=]

Arvind True Blue Limited
9 [Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited

10 |Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
[0 {Goochilt Corporation
11 {F-One Limited

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary Company
Fellow Subsidiaty Company

bpto Nov 29, 2018

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel are able to

exercise significant influence
Feflow Subsidtary Company
Fellow Subsidiary Company

From Nov 30, 2018

Upto Nov 29, 2018

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel are able to

exercise sighificant influence
Fellow Subsidiary Company
Fellow Joint Venture Subsidiary

From Nov 30, 2018

Upte Nov 29, 2018

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel are able to

exercise significant influence
Associate Company
Associate Company

From Nov 30, 2018

Note: Related party refationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors,

Arvind Limited

b Disclosure in respect of Refated Party Transactions :

Rupees

201955
Processing Tncome
Arvind Limited 1,36,26,128 1,53,36,592
Arvird Fashion Limited (Upto 29 Nov, 2018) 52,13,292 -
Sales
Arvind Limited 13,58,478 38,55,570
Goodhill Corporation 2,65,747 6,40,520
Arvind Fashion Limited (Upto 29 Nov, 2018) 6,80,59,534 9,80,55,755
Arvind Fashion Limited (From 30 Nov, 2018) 79,62,895
Calvin Kiein Arvind Fashion Private Limited (Upto 29 Nov, 2018) 5,14,609 29,28.036
Calvin Klein Arvind Faskion Private Limited (From 30 Nov, 2018) 4,93978
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited (Upto 29 Nov, 2018) 42,30,054 44,800
Interest Expense
Arvind Envisol 12,57,812 2,32,088
Purchase
Arvind Fashion Limited - 1,14,338
Arvind Limited 8,14,760 92,27.437
Goodhill Corporation - 61,360
ICD Received
Arvind Envisol 55,94,75,000 13,30,00,000
ICD Paid
Arvind Envisol 51,31,00,000 13,30,00,000
Issue of Equity Shares
Arvind Linited 2,55,00,000 3,31,50,000
Goodhill Corporation 1,45,00,000 1,88,50,000
F-One Limited 1,00,00,000 1,30,00,000
Outstanding
Receivable in respect of Current Assets
Arvind Limited 63,21,755 51,26,386
Premium Garment Wholsesale Private Limited - 3,76,732
Arvind Fashion Limited 16,45,620 2,93,34,747
Goodhill Corporation - 3,22,447
Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 4,83,294 44 800
Payable in respect of Current Liabilities
Arvind Envisol Limted 477,135,904 2,08,878
F-One Limited 42218 42218
‘Arvind True Blue Limited . -
Arvind Limited 1,02.00,179 1.85.01.278
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Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes fo the Financia! Statements

Note 33 : Financial instr risk ma objectives and poticies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings and trede & other payables. The main purpose of these financial iabilities is
to finance the Company’s operations and to support its operations. The Company’s principal finaneial assets include Tnvestments, loans given, frade and other
recgivables and cash & short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations,

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Ir order to minimise any adverse effects on the Fnancial performance of the company,
derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign cutrency eption contracts are entered 1o hedge certain foreign currency exposures
and interest rate swaps to hedge certain variable intecest rate exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading / speculative

instruments.

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a Treasury department under policies approved by the Board of directors. Company's treasury identifies, evaluates
and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Company's operating units. The board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and invesiment of excess liquidity.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of 2 financial instrument wil? fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three

types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruinents affected by market risk include
borrowings, deposits, Investments, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments.

Within the various methodologies to anafyse and manage risk, Company has ithplemented a system based on “sensilzvity analysis” on symmetnc basis, This tool
enabiles the risk managers to identify the risk position of the entities. Sensitivity analysis provides an approxitnate quantification of the exposure in the event that certain
specified parameters were to be met under a specific set of assumptions. The risk estimates provided here assume:

- a paratlel shift of S0 basis point of the interest rate yeild curves in ali the curvencies.

- & simultaneous, parallel forgign exchange rates shifl in which the INR appreciates / depresiates against al? currencies by 2%

The potentizl economic impact, due to these assumptions, is based on'the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and reflects estimated changes resulting
from the sensitivity analysis. Actual rasults that are included in the Statement of profit & loss may differ materially from these estimates due to'actual developments in
the globa! financial markets

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the casrying values of gratuity, pension and other post-retirement obligations and provisions.

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
- The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is hased on the financial asscts and
financial liabilities held at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 including the effect of hedge accounting.

- The sensitivity of equity is calculated by considering the effect-of any associated cash flow hedges as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 for the effects of the
assumed changes of the underlying risk

Interest rate risk
interest Tate sisk arises from the sensitivity of financial assets and liabifities to changes in market rates of interest. The Company seeks to mitigate such risk by entering

into interest rats derivative firancial instruments such as interest rate SWAPS O CIOSs-CUTTency interest rate swaps. Inferest rale swap agreements are used to adjust the
proportion of fotal debt, that are subject 1o variable and fixed interest rates.

Under an interest rate swap agreement, the Company either agrees to pay an amount equal 10 & specified fixed-rate of interest times a notional principal amount, and to
[ECeive in returm an amount equal to a specified variable-rate of interest fimes the same notional principal amount or, vice-versa, to receive a fixed-zate amount and to
pay a variable-rate amount. The.notional amounts of the contracts are not exchanged. No ather cash payments are made unless the agreement. is terminated prior 1o
maturity, in which case the amount piid or received in settlement is established by agreement at the time of termination, and usually represents the net present value, at
current rates of interest, of the remaining obligations to exchange payments under the terms of the contract.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demanstrates the sensitivity o a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of fpans and borrowings affected, after the impact of

hedge aceounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is afiected through the impacs on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

March 31,2019
Increase in 50 basis points 540958
Decrease in 50 basis poinis -5,40,958
March 31,2018
In¢czease in 50 basis points 9,71,235
Decrease in: 50 basis poinis -9.71,235

Exclusion from this analysis are as follows: .
- Fixed rate financial instruments measured at cost : Since a change in interest rate would not change the cammying amount of this category of instruments, there is no net

income impact and they are excluded frotm this analysis

- The effect of interest rate changes on future cash flows is excluded from this analysis.

Foreign curreacy risk
Foreign curreney risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure wili fluctuate bocause of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Compeny

transacts business in local cutrency and in foreign currency, primasily in USD. The Company has obtained foreign currency loans and has foreign currency trade
payables. and receivables ete. and is, thercfore, exposed ta foreign exchange risk. The Company may use forward eontracts, foreign exchange opticns or currency swaps
towards hedping risk resulting from changes and fluctuations in foreign cuirrency exchange rate. These foreign exchange contracts, carried at fair value, may have
varying maturities. varying depending upon the primary host contract requirements and risk manegement strategy of the company.

Tae Company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging appropriate percentage of iis foreign cusrency exposure, as approved by Board as per established risk
management policy. Details of the hedge & unhedged position of the Company given in Note no.26
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Arvind Goodhill Snit Manufacluring Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Foreign currency sensitivity .
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a Teasonably possible change in USE), EUR and GBP rates to the functional currericy of respective entity, with afl
other variables held constant, The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all ather cusrencics is not material. The impact on the Company”s profit before
tax is due to changes in the fair value of moneiary assets and liabilities. The impact on the Company’s pre-tax equily is due ta changes in the fair value of foreign
currency monetary itetns designated as cash flow hedge,

March 31, 2019 +2% 99,211
-2% 199,211}

March 31, 2018 2% (3:67,764)
2% 3,67,764

March 31, 2019 +2% (203)
2% 203
March 31,2018 +2% {41,925)
2% 41,925

March 31,2019 +2% 881,752
2% (8,81,752)

March 31, 2018 +2% 3,67,291
2% (3,67,291)

March 31, 2019 +2% (696}
-2% 696

March 31, 2058 +2% (696)
2% 696

The mavement in the pre-tax effect is a result of a change in the fair value of financial instruments not designated in a hedge relationship. Altheugh the- financial
instruments have not been designated in a hedge relationship, they act as an economic hedge and will offset the underlying transactions when they oceur.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under  financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial foss, The Company is
exposed to eredit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing. activities, including deposis with banks, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial insiruments.

Trade receivables

Customer eredit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management, Trade teceivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 14 days to 30 days credit term. Credit limits are established for all customers based on
internal rating eriteria. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of crednt. The
Cormnpany has no concentration of eredit risk as the customer base is widely distributed both econemically and geographically.

An impairment analysis és performed at each reporting date or an individual basis for major clients. In addition, & Jarge humber of miner receivables are grouped into
homogenous groups and assessed for impairment coilectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data, The maximum exposure te credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 7. The Company does not hold collateral as secutity. The Company evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent
markets.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk fiem balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy.
Javestments of surplus funds are made only with ‘approved counterparties who meets the minimum threshold réquirements under the counterparty tisk assessment
process. The Company monitors the ratings, credit spreads and financial strength of its counterparties. Based on its on-going zssessment of couriterpariy risk, the growp
adjusts its exposure 1o various counterparties. The Campany's maximum exposure to credit risk far the components of the Balance sheet as of March 31, 2019 and
Mareh 31, 2018 is the carrying amount as disclosed in Note 31.
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Lituidity risk

Liquidity risk 15 the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The
Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of figuidity 1o meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors tis liquidity
posttion and deplays a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft.from both domestic and
international banks at an optimised cost. It also enjoys strong access to domestic capita! markets acrogs equity.

The table below sammarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractuaf undiscounted payments:

Particidats 1'year to 3 yesrs L3 yenrs o S vears

Year ended March 31, 2019

Interest bearing borrowings* 28,14,48,428 10,29,81.672 2,55,24,044 1,28,44,271

Trade payables 15,74,98,288 1,55,76,753 -

Other financial liabiiities# 1,97,71,383 1,631,906 -
45,87,18,099 11,86,40,331 2,55,24,044 1,28,44,271 -

Year ended March 31, 2018

Interest bearing borrowings* 19,01,28,343 10,79,05,435 9,57,27.819 88,55,742

Trade payables 15,79,54,803 1,58,12,683 -

Other financial Hiabilities# 2,17.43,757 2,01,049 -
36,98,26,%01 12,39,19,167 9,57,27,819 88,55,742 -

* Includes contractual interest payment besed an interest rate prevailing at the end of the reporting periad over the tencr-of the borrowings.
# Other financial liabilities includes interest acerued bui not due of Rs, 2,41,304 (March 31, 2018 : Rs 1,21,298), Current maturity of long-tefm borrowings is included

in interest bearing borrowing part in above note.

Note 34 : Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and ail other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in erder to

support 1ts business and maximise shareholder value.

The Campany manages its capital structure and makes adfustments ta it in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. To-maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment ta shareholders, retun capital ta shareholders or tssue new shares. The Company monitors capital
using & geanng ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash
and short-term deposits (including other bank balance).

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 41,08,64,501 39,37,00,523
(Note i3 a)

Less: cash and cash equivalent (2,87,82,08%) (2,74,15,228)
{including other bank balance) (Note

Te)

Net debt 38,20.82.412 36,62,85,2958
Equity shate capital (Note 11} 1,07,00,000 97,00,000
Other equity (Note 12} 51,49,51,396 48,00,19,570
Total capital 52,56,51,3%6 48,97,19.570
Capital and net debt 00,77,33,808 $5,60,04,865
Gearing ratio 42,09% 42.79%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims 1o ensure that it meets financial covenants attached ta the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capitdl structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call
loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31,2018,

Loan covenants
Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company has complied with the required financial covenants through out the reporting periods.
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Note 35 : Operating segment

The Company's business activity falis within a single primary business segment of manufacture of garments,
Accordingly the Company is a single segment company in accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment”.

Further, no single customer contributes to more than 10% of the company's revenue.
g pany

Geographical segment

Geographical segment {s considered based on sales within India and rest of the world.

Rupees
Particulars March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Segment Revenue*
a}In India 18,07,18,689 20,23,25,093
b) Rest of the world 40,69,32,874 79,04,04.322
Total Sales 58,76,51,563 99,27,29,415
Carrying Cost of Segment Assets**
a) Tn India 1,11,68,67,361 1,06,05,38,924
b) Rest of the world 6,63,90,255 6,63,90,252
Total 1,18,32,57,616 1,12,69,29,176
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets**@
a) In India 46,28,40,131 48.67,53,487
b} Rest of the world - -
Total 46,28,40,131 48,67,53,487

* Based on location of Customers
** Based on location of Assets
@ Excluding Financial Assets and deferred tax asset.

Standards issued but not effective
“The standard issued, but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements is disclosed below. The

Company intends to adopt this standard when it becomes effective.

Ind AS 116 - Leases

On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 Leases, under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Anendment Rules, 2019 which is applicable with effect from 1st April, 2019.

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a
contract i:¢., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model for lessee and requires the lessee to
recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset
is low value in nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Ind AS 116 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

As per Ind AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities in the
statement of profit and loss. The lease payments-made by the lessee under the lease arrangement will be adjusted against the lease
liabilities. The Company is currently evaluating the impact on account of implementation of Ind AS 116 which might have significant
impact on key profit & loss and balance sheet ratio i.e. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA),
Asset coverage, debt equity, interest coverage, ete.

Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified
Figures of the earlier year have been regrouped to conform with those of current year.



